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I. COMPLAINT 

This Complaint and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing (Complaint) is filed pursuant to 

section 16(a) of the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), 15 U.S.c. § 2615(a), and the 

Consolidated Rules ofPractice Governing the Administrative Assessment a/Civil Penalties and 

the Revocation/Termination or Suspension ofPermits (Consolidated Rules of Practice), 40 C.P.R. 

Part 22. A copy of the Consolidated Rules of Practice is attached to this Complaint as Attachment 

A. The Complainant is Rosemarie A. Kelley, Director, Waste and Chemical Enforcement 

Division, Office of Civil Enforcement, Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance, United 

States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA or Complainant), who has been duly delegated the 

authority to initiate this action . The Respondent is Haldor Topsoe, Inc. (Haldor Topsoe or 

Respondent), headquartered at 17629 EI Camino Real, Suite 300, Houston, Texas, 77058. 

Complainant alleges that Respondent did not comply with the reporting requirements of 

section 8(a) ofTSCA, 15 U.S.c. § 2607(a), and the Inventory Update Reporting Rule (IUR) 

promulgated thereunder at 40 c.P.R. Part 7 I O. Respondent's failure to comply with these 

requirements violates section 15 ofTSCA, 15 U.S.c. § 2614. 



1. 	 8(a)(1)(A) ofTSCA, 15 § 2607(a)(1)(A), authorizes the promulgation ofmles 

by EPA under which each person who manufactures a chemical 	 must maintain 

"submit to Administrator such reports, as Administrator may reasonably 

" 

2. 	 Pursuant to section 15(3)(8) TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 14(3)(B), it is unlawful any person 

to fail or refuse to submit reports, or other information as TSCA ora 

thereunder. 

3. 	 to 40 C.F.R. § 71 0.3, "person" means "any natural or juridical person including any 

individual, corporation, partnership, or u.~""U"'''''uu any or political subdivision thereof, 

or municipality, and interstate body and any department, or instrumentality the 

Federal " 

4. 	 "Manufacture" is defined by section 3(7) ofTSCA, 15 § 2602(7), as "to import into 

customs of the United States ... , 

U.S.C. § 2602(2)(A), as 

"any or inorganic substance of a particular molecular identity ...." 

5. "chemical substance" is defined by section 3(2)(A) of 

6. 	 to 40 § 710.48(a), unless an applies,"[ a Jny who 

manufactured (including for. purposes 25,000 pounds (11,340 

kilograms) or more a chemical substance [which is listed on the TSCA Master Inventory 

... at any owned or controlled by person at any during year 

2005 or during calendar year at 5-year intervals thereafter is subject to 

7. 	 A person subject to § 71O.48(a) is required to file a 

Data Base Site Report U) with the pursuant to 40 § 71 
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8. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 71O.52(c)(3)(iv), total volume reportable chemical 

sUfJlstance must be ..o ....."M"~".. within 1 0% the actual volume manufactured and imported. 

9. 	 Pursuant to 40 .R. § 710.53, person who is subject to was required to file a 

FormU 	 each chemical with EPA n"T'llfP,-n August 2006 and 

23,2007. 

10. Respondent is a corporation that owns or controls a facility located at 10010 Bayport 

Pasadena, 77507. 

11. Respondent is a as defined in .R. § 71 as such is to TSCA 

regulations promulgated wn... ,'''' ... '".... '''' 

12. Respondent "manufactures" a "chemical " as defined in 4 and 5. 

13. calendar 2005, Respondent manufactured commercial ....·"'""''''''''''' 25,000 

pounds (11 kilograms) or more of each the following chemical substances at 

facility 	 Paragraph 10: 

Chemical # 1: Potassium metavanadate, Chemical n"n-",,-.r Service No. 
Chemical Potassium oxide, No. 121 
Chemical : Iron, CAS No. 7439-89-6 
Chemical Iron (III) CAS No.1 

14. 	 chemical substances listed above in Paragraph 13 are included in Master 

Inventory 

15. Pursuant to 40 C. F.R. § 710 .46(b )(3), the substances above in 

are excluded from reporting under IUR Rule only regard to process and use 

reporting § 710.S2(c)(4). 
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16. Respondent failed to submit to a 2006 Form U for of chemical 

2007.listed in Paragraph 13 as required between August 2006 and 

17. Respondent 	 a 2006 U for of chemical substances listed in Paragraph 13 on 

or about March 2, 2009. 

18. Respondent's to submit a U for the chemical In 

Paragraph 13 by March 23, 2007 is a failure to submit a report, notice, or other information a') 

required 40 §§ 710.48 and 53. 

19. Respondent's to submit a Fonn U for of chemical substances Paragraph 13 

constitutes separate violations section 15 (3)(B) ofTSCA, 15 § 14(3)(B). 

20. A person who violates section 15 (3)(B) ofTSCA, 15 § 2614(3)(B) is subje.ct to civil 

pursuant to 15 U.S.c.§ 2615(a). 

Counts V - XIII 

21. Paragraphs ] 0 and incorporated herein by rAT""""'"12 are 

During calendar 2005, Respondent manufactured for commercial purposes 25,000 

pounds (11,340 or more of of following 

facility described above in Paragraph 10: 

#5: Nickel, No. 7440-02-0 
Chemical #6: (II) oxide, No. 1317~38-0 
Chemical #7: Zinc oxide, No. 1314-1 
Chemical #8: Magnesium oxide, CAS No. 1309~48-4 

#9: Iron (II, oxide, 1309-38-2 
#10: Silica, No. 7631-86-9 

Chemical #11: trioxide, CAS No. 1314-35-8 
#12: oxide, CAS 13]3 1 

Chemical #13: Aluminum oxide, No. 1344-28-1 
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23. chemical listed in 22 are included in Master 

inventory 

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 710,46(b)(3), the substances above in Paragraph 

are from reporting under the IUR only to the nrt'.t'P"" and use 

requirements under 40 § 710.S2(c)(4). 

25. Respondent filed a Form for of the chemical substances 10 22 on or 

about ]4,2006. 

On or about March 2009, Respondent a revised Form U to amend the volumes 

originally reported for of chemical substances listed in Paragraph 22 above. 

27. The amended 	 Respondent submitted on or about March 2, 2009, the 

volumes Respondent on or about 14,2006, by significantly more than the 

allowable under 40 C.F.R. § 710.52(c)(3)(iv). 

Respondent's to report total volume of the chemicals listed in Paragraph above 

within 1 the actual volume manufactured and imported constitutes a to submit a 

or other nTArtTI·>tlA In manner required by 40 C.F.R. § 710.S2(c)(3)(iv). 

Respondent's failure to report in the manner required by 40 C.F.R. § 710.52(c)(3)(iv) for 

of chemical substances in Paragraph constitutes nine separate violations section IS 

(3)(B) of 15 U.S.C. § 14(3)(B). 

30. A 	 who violates section 15 (3)(B) ofTSCA, 15 U.S.c. § 2614(3)(B) is subject to civil 

pursuant to section 16(a) of 15 15(a). 
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§ 16, 15 U .S.C. § 15, authorizes the assessment of a civil penalty for violations 

ofTSCA§15,15 §2614, the maximum amount of$25,000 each day of violation. 

The Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act 1990, as amended by the Debt Collection 

Improvement Act of 1996, requires EPA to adjust penalties to account for inflation. EPA's Civil 

Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment establishes $27,500 of violation as the 

maximum civil penalty that may assessed under TSCA § 16(a), per violation, occurring 

between January 1997 March 15, 2004; $32,500 for violations between March 

16,2004 and January 12,2009; and $37,500 for violations occurring after January 12,2009. See 

40 C.F.R. Part 19; 61 Fed. Reg. 69,360 (Dec. 31, 1996); Fed. Reg. 121 (Feb. 13,2004); 73 

Reg. 75,340 (Dec. 11, 2008). 

For purposes of determining the amount of a civil penalty to be assessed, TSCA section 

I6(a)(2)(B), 15 U. § I5(a)(2)(B), requires to take into account nature, 

circumstances, extent, and gravity of violations alleged, as well as Respondent's ability to 

pay, effect on ability to continue to do any history prior such violations, of 

culpability, and such other matters as justice may require. In developing a proposed penalty, 

UIJ"«"'UU will into account the particular facts and circumstances ofthis case with 

specific ..>r'f>nr'~' to set forth in TSCA section 16(a)(2)(B), 15 U.S.C . 

§ 2615(a)(2)(B), and the EPA's Enforcement Response Policy (ERP) for Reporlingand 

Recordkeeping Rules and Requirements for 8, and 13 March 31, 1 

effective June I, 1999). Attachment The was developed in accordance with the 

Guidelines for Assessment ofCivil Penalties Under Section 16 ofthe Toxic Substances Control 

Act; Penalty Policy, which sets forth a general assessment policy for TSCA 
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violations. 45 59,770 (Sept. 10, 1980). Attachment The policies provide rational, 

consistent, and equitable calculation methodologies for applying the statutory factors enumerated 

to particular cases. 

Based upon facts alleged in this Complaint, and upon the nature, circumstances, extent 

and gravity of violations alleged, as well as Respondent's ability to pay, effect on ability to 

continue to do business, history of violations the rlpo'rpp of culpability, 

and other matters as justice may require, the Complainant proposes that Ke:SDOlnaem be 

1:ISSI;::SSt:U a penalty of $202,779 for violations in this Complaint. 

As provided in TSCA section 16(a)(2)(A), 15 § 5(a)(2)(A), and consistent with 

40 C.F.R § 22.15, Respondent has the right to request a formal hearing to contest any material 

fact set forth in this Complaint or to contest appropriateness of proposed penalty. 

a hearing, Respondent must file a written Answer to Complaint with the Headquarters 

Hearing Clerk, within 30 days of of this Complaint, at the following address: 

Headquarters Hearing Clerk (1900L) 
United States Environmental Protection Agency 
1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW 
Washington, DC 20460 

Any requested will be conducted in accordance with the Administrative Procedure Act, 

5 U. § 1 et , and Consolidated Rules of Practice. Attachment A. 

Pursuant to Consolidated Rules Practice, 40 C.F.R. § 22.15, Respondent's Answer 

must and directly admit, deny, or each of contained in the 

Complaint which Respondent has any knowledge. Where Respondent has no knowledge a 
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particular factual the should so state. The Answer ,-,£lV"..U contain: (1) 

or which are to constitute the of any (2) 

which Respondent disputes; (3) basis for opposing any proposed relief; and (4) a 

statement as to whether a hearing is requested. denial material or the of 

affirmative defense shall construed as a request a hearing. All material facts not u ....u., ....u. 

in the will be considered as admitted. 

If fails to a written within days of this 

such failure shaH constitute an admission all facts in the Complaint and a waiver of 

Respondent's right to a hearing on factual allegations. to file a written Answer may 

result in Complainant's filing a Motion for Order imposing without 

proceedings. 

A of Respondent's and other documents that Respondent files in 

should be sent to the of assigned to represent this as 

follows: 

Saylor, Attorney-Advisor 
and Chemical J..,'ntiu·"Plmp 

Office of Enforcement 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
1200 Pennsylvania N.W. (Mail Code 2249A) 

D.C. 
(202) 24 

: saylor.erin@epa.gov 

Whether or not Respondent requests a hearing. Respondent may confer informally with 

to the this case, or amount of penalty, and possibility settlement. 
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An settlement conference not, however, Respondent's obligation to file a 

timely written Answer to the Complaint. 

EPA has the authority, where PPlror.n3lte, to the amount penal ty, once 

to reflect settlement reached with "1''\r,nf1p.nt in an informal The 

terms of such an would be embodied in a Consent Agreement. A Consent Agreement 

signed by and Respondent would binding as to tenns and 

upon issuance of a Final Order by Environmental Appeals 

Please advised that Consolidated Rules of Practice prohibit any ex parte (unilateral) 

discussion the merits this action Administrator, the of the Environmental 

'1-'1-''''''''' Board, assigned Administrative Law or any likely to these 

officials in case, after the issuance oftrus Complaint. C.F.R. § 

filing an a hearing, or requesting an informal 

you may pay the prOlpo:sea penalty to this matter. 40 § 18 (a). 

Such should made by sending either a or certified check with a 

notation "Haldor Penalty JJU''-'.I'>.';';;l No. 12-501 , payable to 

order the "Treasurer, United States America", to: 

Environmental Protection 
and 

Docket No. TSCA-HQ-20 
Cincinnati 
P.O. 979077 
S1. MO 63197-9000 
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or by transfer with a ".Haldor T opsoe, Docket No. TSCA-HQ­

the 

Federal ofNew York 
ABA = 
Account = 6801 
SWIFT FRNYUS33 
33 Liberty 
New York, NY 10045 
Field Tag 4200 Fedwire message should 
"D 68010727 Protection r1.""~lJ" 
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In the Matter of Haldor Topsoe, Inc. 
(Docket Number TSCA-HQ-2012-5015) 

By: 

C!(4 {?c II 
Date: ______________ 

Waste and Chemical Enforcement Division 
Office of Civil Enforcement 
Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
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In the Matter of Haldor Topsoe, Inc. 

Attachment A Consolidated of 40 C.F.R. Part 

B Enforcement Policy for Reporting and Recordkeeping and 

Requirements for TSCA 8, 12 and (revised March 31, 1999; 

June 1,1999). 

Attachment C Guidelines for Assessment Penalties Section 16 ofthe Toxic 

Control Act; PCB Penalty 45 59,770 

10, 1980). 
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UNITED STATES 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

) 
In the Matter of: ) Docket Number TSCA-HQ-2012-5015 

) 
Haldor Topsoe, Inc. ) SERVICE 
Houston, Texas ) 

) 
Respondent ) 

I hereby certify that original and Notice of Opportunity for 

Docket TSCA-HQ-2012-5015, has been filed with the Headquarters Hearing Clerk 

and that a copy was sent mail, return r"""~IT" requested to: 

Olsen 
Chief Executive Officer 
Haldor 
17629 Camino Real, Suite 300 
Houston, 77058 

Fulbright 
Fulbright 
1301 McKinney, Suite 5100 
Houston, 77010-3095 

Attorney-Advisor 
Waste Chemical Enforcement Division 
Office Civil (Mail Code 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
1200 Pennsylvania NW 
Washington, DC 20460 
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